
 

CACHE COUNTY COUNCIL  
DAVID L. ERICKSON, CHAIR        
BARBARA Y. TIDWELL, VICE CHAIR        
KATHRYN A BEUS           199 NORTH MAIN STREET 
SANDI GOODLANDER          LOGAN, UT 84321 

NOLAN P. GUNNELL        
MARK R. HURD         435-755-1840 
KARL B. WARD                                                                                    www.cachecounty.org 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the County Council of Cache County, Utah will hold a REGULAR 

COUNCIL MEETING at 5:00 p.m. in the Cache County Historic Courthouse Council Chambers, 199 North 

Main Street, Logan, Utah 84321, TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2024 
 

Council meetings are live streamed on the Cache County YouTube channel at: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCa4xvEI8bnIEz3B9zw2teaA 
 

 

AGENDA  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 

5:00 p.m. 1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. OPENING – Councilmember Nolan Gunnell 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES (May 14, 2024) 

5. REPORT OF COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

a. Appointments:  

b. Other Items:  

     

6. ITEMS OF SPECIAL INTEREST 

 a.     Updating Emergency Interim Successors for Local Officers – Will Lusk, County Emergency Manager 

 b.    Presentation from the Cache Economic Opportunity Board – Councilmember Mark Hurd  

 

7. DEPARTMENT OR COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

8. BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

 

5:30 p.m. 9.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

(Estimated)        a. Set Public Hearing for June 11, 2024 – Ordinance 2024-05 – Quarter-In Ventures Property Rezone 

  A request to rezone 8.0 acres from the Agricultural (A10) Zone to the Commercial (C) Zone on a property located 

at ~1105 West 4400 South, near Hyrum. (Parcel numbers 03-059-0007, -0008) 

 

10. PENDING ACTION 

 a.     Consideration and Approval of RAPZ Board Decisions 

 

11. INITIAL PROPOSALS FOR CONSIDERATION OF ACTION 

 a. Resolution 2024-11 A Resolution Supporting the Waiving of Encroachment Fees for the Installation  

   of Broadband in Underserved Areas of Cache County 

 

12. OTHER BUSINESS          

    a. Nibley Heritage Days Parade   June 22, 2024 at 10:00 am 

 

    b. Lewiston Independence Day Parade                    July 4, 2024 at 9:15 am  

 

    c. Hyrum Independence Day Parade                       July 4, 2024 at 10:00 am 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCa4xvEI8bnIEz3B9zw2teaA


In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations 

(including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should notify Janeen Allen at 435-

755-1850 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 

    d. Discussion of reintroducing the County Agricultural Advisory Board 

 

    e. April 2024 Treasurer’s Reconciliation Report 

 

13. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

 

14. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 _________________________________

 David L. Erickson, Chair 



CACHE COUNTY COUNCIL  
*May 15, 2024* at 5:00 p.m. - Cache County Chamber at 199 North Main, Logan, Utah. 

In accordance with the requirements of Utah Code Annotated Section 52-4-203, the County Clerk records in the minutes the names of all persons who 

appear and speak at a County Council meeting and the substance “in brief” of their comments. Such statements may include opinions or purported facts. 

The County does not verify the accuracy or truth of any statement but includes it as part of the record pursuant to State law. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair David Erickson, Vice-Chair Barbara Tidwell, Councilmember Karl Ward, Councilmember Sandi 

Goodlander, Councilmember Nolan Gunnell, Councilmember Mark Hurd, Councilmember Kathryn Beus 

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Executive Zook 

STAFF PRESENT: Executive Dirk Anderson, Clerk Bryson Behm 

OTHER ATTENDANCE:  

 

 

 

Council Meeting 

1. Call to Order 5:00p.m. – Council Chair David Erickson 8:01 

2. Presentation of Colors/Pledge – Cache County Sheriff Honor Guard 8:50 

a. Opening – Mark Hurd spoke and thanked law enforcement for their service followed by the opening prayer.  9:56 

 

3. Review and Approval of Agenda APPROVED 12:43 

Action: Motion made by Councilmember Sandi Goodlander to approve the agenda; seconded by Councilmembers Nolan 
Gunnell and Kathyrn Bues .   
Motion passes. 
Aye: 7 David Erickson, Barbara Tidwell, Kathryn Beus, Nolan Gunnell, Sandi Goodlander, Karl Ward, Mark Hurd 
Nay: 0  
 

4. Review and Approval of Minutes APPROVED 12:57 

Action: Motion made by Councilmember Karl Ward to approve the minutes; seconded by Councilmember Nolan Gunnel.   
Motion passes. 
Aye: 7 David Erickson, Barbara Tidwell, Kathryn Beus, Nolan Gunnell, Sandi Goodlander, Karl Ward, Mark Hurd 
Nay: 0  
 

5. Report of the County Executive - Dirk Anderson excused Executive Zook out on county business 13:17 

 

6. Items of Special Interest 13:30 

 

a. Proclamation – Law enforcement Week/ Peace Officers Memorial Day – Cache County Sheriff’s Office. 

Appointment/Discussion: Councilmember Barbara Tidwell emotionally read the proclamation to those attending.  13:45  

Sheriff Jensen thanked the history of law enforcement and gave his respect for those who have served and currently 

serve 17:21.  He called the individuals receiving their special service awards to the front and recognized each of them for 

their service.  39:22 President Cottle spoke and presented the presidential awards to those individuals being recognized.  

42:22 Chair Erickson called for standing ovation.  

Action: Motion made by Councilmember Nolan Gunnel to approve; seconded by Councilmember Kathryn Bues.   
Motion passes. 17:05 
Aye: 7 David Erickson, Barbara Tidwell, Kathryn Beus, Nolan Gunnell, Sandi Goodlander, Karl Ward, Mark Hurd 
Nay: 0 

 
b. Emission Regulations –  Jordan Mathis, Bear River Health Department  

Appointment/Discussion: Jordan Mathis presented the 2023 annual report. 44:17 Councilmember Sandi Goodlander 
asked if contracts through the federal government are stable.  48:57 Jordan answered they are flat.  49:11 He explained that 

https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=481
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=530
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=596
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=763
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=777
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=797
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=810
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=825
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=1041
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2362
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2542
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=1025
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2657
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2937
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2951


if new methods for emissions testing and changes to serve the public better are approved by the board of health they will 
need to be ratified by council 46:46 Chair Erickson asked how big the ‘if’ is if it goes well.  Jordan answered tiny and 
explained the changes are positive and loosen the regulation to become more adaptable for the needs to the public, state, 
and EPA.  55:05 Jordan explained the healthiest people numbers and council expressed gratitude for their service to the 
community.  1:00:32 Chair Erickson jokingly brought up concern Rich County dropped a ranking for healthiest county.  Jordan 
gave an example for dental care those residents would go to Evanston so the care in numbers there looks lower when the 
care is really right next door.  1:00:46 

c. Presentation and Approval of ARPA Award Recommendations – Alma Burgess, Cache County Grants Manager  
Appointment/Discussion:  Alma presented five projects to council that had been discussed at the appropriations 

committee 1:02:05.  Chair Erickson asked what a pop up bike lane initiative is 1:05:51.  Alma answered devices or barriers 

with signage to place in a temporary way to create a bike path to check the area works.  Chair Erickson asked for input 

from the Appropriations Committee 1:06:08.  Councilmember Sandi Goodlander explained it made a lot of sense for 

communities that want a safe bike lane to use the materials temporarily first and see if it does help the flow of traffic and 

works for the area.  1:06:53 Chair Erickson asked about the ambulance price and Alma clarified what was budgeted.   

1:07:37  Sandi added it was discussed if there are extra funds available in ARPA at the end of the year the number one 

priority would be ambulance. 1:07:50  Karl Ward said the plan seems to be well thought out and sensible.   1:08:18  Sandi 

said the first responder mental health plan program was funded through ARPA but the state has it now mandated 

1:08:25.  Alma mentioned the funds already put in projects will probably be expended this year, and the amount of 

money being discussed now is for 2025-2026 1:08:40.   Council proceeded to vote then Sandi Goodlander brought up the 

$28000 short in budget.  Alma and council discussed bid conversation would happen the following week that may take 

those funds and agreement was being made for the allocated projects presented.  1:09:08 

Action: Motion made by Councilmember Nolan Gunnel to approve; seconded by Councilmember Sandi Goodlander.   
Motion passes. 
Aye: 7 David Erickson, Barbara Tidwell, Kathryn Beus, Nolan Gunnell, Sandi Goodlander, Karl Ward, Mark Hurd 
Nay: 0 
 

7. Department or Committee Reports 
a. Bear River Health Department – Jordan Mathis and Estee Hunt 

8. BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
9. Public Hearings 
10. Pending Action 
11. INITIAL PROPOSALS FOR CONSIDERATION OF ACTION  

a. Resolution 2024-10 A Resolution Establishing the Cache County Senior Center Code of Conduct, Computer Use 

Policy, Disciplinary, Grievance and Appeal Procedures 

Discussion: Giselle Madrid Presented new code of conduct for the senior center that explains the care provided, 

discipline, rules, etc 1:10:43.  Councilmember Karl Ward asked for clarification of the level of disregard to policy the 

patrons display.  1:12:33  Giselle answered not much however some instances of differences that a code of conduct 

would benefit everyone. 1:12:53 Vice Chair Barbara Tidwell asked how long it had been since the manual was updated 

1:14:07.   Giselle answered 10 years.  Councilmember Nolan Gunnell asked who hears grievance and appeals procedures 

1:14:18 . Giselle answered they first come to her and her assistant to hopefully work out a resolution and if not sent to 

the executive office.  Chair Erickson asked if there is a registration process.  1:14:33 Giselle answered yes each new 

patron gets a packet that lists the code of conduct and a federal registration form they sign in agreement to abide by the 

code of conduct which is signed yearly thereafter 1:14:41. Councilmember Mark Hurd asked about computer use 

1:15:13.  Giselle answered an increase of homelessness in the valley and non-residents using the center for nutrition and 

activities brought reason for limits. 1:15:21 Councilmember Sandi Goodlander and Vice Chair Barbara Tidwell thanked 

Giselle for her work 1:15:54. 

 

Action: Motion made by Councilmember Karl Ward to approve; seconded by Vice Chair Barbara Tidwell  
Motion passes. 
Aye: 7 David Erickson, Barbara Tidwell, Kathryn Beus, Nolan Gunnell, Sandi Goodlander, Karl Ward, Mark Hurd 

https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=2986
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=3305
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=3632
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=3646
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=3745
file://///ANAKIN/DATA/CLERK/Records/Council/Minutes/2024/5-14/1:/02:05
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4008
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4013
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4057
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4070
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4098
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4105
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4120
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4148
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4243
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4353
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4373
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4447
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4458
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4473
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4481
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4513
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4521
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4554


Nay: 0 
 

 

b. Consideration and Approval of RAPZ Board Decisions 

Discussion:  Chair Erickson and council gave their thanks for the work involved with each of the applications put 

together and asked what residual was left over 1:16:55.  Alma answered the residual amount and the outcome of 

other applications 1:18:40  Chair Erickson turned over to council for discussion and questions 1:19:20 

Councilmember Kathryn Bues asked if last year’s balance is included in the residual 1:19:41 Alma explained if this 

money is not used by the next time applications open up money will be moved to next year’s application 1:19:53.  

Nolan Gunnel raised his concerns about funds for feasibility studies and requested more information and research.  

He added to consider contributing money to Wellsville and Logan Downtown Alliance.  He gave an example of his 

concern as the water request for Hyrum/Wellsville canal since it won’t be ready for years.  1:20:16 Councilmember 

Kathryn Bues asked who made the request 1:22:10.  Nolan answered development services and he had not spoken 

to them but had with the districts.  He expressed interest in the recreation facility but wanted more information 

1:22:13 Vice Chair Tidwell added to Nolan’s comment and asked if the $200,000 development services is asking for 

will be all for this study 1:23:09.  Kathryn spoke to Nolan’s concern why Wellsville had exclusions.  She said the 

decision was made that any sidewalk funding belonged to each municipality and then further explained the parking 

in Cornish 1:23:44. Council discussed the committee meeting and disagreement in favorability of studies amongst 

public and municipalities.  Councilmember Kathryn Bues asked if chair Erickson would allow the elected officials 

involved to speak to council 1:29:12 Mayor Lindsay Peterson voiced plans to contribute to the $200,000 and 

expressed the need for a facility due to the climate here.  1:29:48 Councilmember Barbara Tidwell asked how much 

her city planned to add in and Dirk explained the breakdown 1:31:57.   Mayor Peterson added to Barbara that the 

final cost for feasibility is unknown but is confident in the amount and the process for feasibility studies 1:33:00   

Councilmember Sandi Goodlander asked about other cities roles that have recreation programs already in place 

1:35:07  Mayor Peterson answered city boundaries are generally not followed by the public for recreation and the 

cities are collaborating 1:35:25.  Councilmember Nolan Gunnell gave concern residents in Trenton, Cornish, Newton, 

would not value from a rec center due to distance and hoped the feasibility study would give insight 1:37:31.  Mayor 

Peterson said the County School District expressed desire to partner 1:39:10. Councilmember Nolan Gunnel wanted 

more information before he would agree 1:40:10.  Councilmember Barbara Tidwell asked who manages the 

feasibility studies and Mayor Peterson answered a group of elected officials and committee of recreation directors 

and city administrators 1:40:31.  Councilmember Sandi Goodlander asked why a member of council was not asked 

to part of this committee and  Mayor Peterson invited anyone on council to participate 1:41:15.  Councilmember 

Barbara Tidwell asked if the feasibility came back not approved, what the explanation to the people would be why 

the money spent and Mayor Peterson answered her council has an obligation to listen to the requests from citizens 

to explore this.  The feasibility under her speculation would give parameters of how to get a facility if not approved 

1:42:51.  Councilmember Mark Hurd agreed he has heard strong interest in the facility 1:44:37 Councilmember Karl 

Ward asked how $200,000 was decided 1:45:12.  Councilmember Kathryn Bues answered an RFP by Nibley City for a 

similar study 1:45:28 Councilmember Sandi Goodlander voiced her concern with the senior center funding however 

RAPZ money would not be used for it and said this is a good use. If the feasibility comes back with parameters 

voters are not willing to pay for it is in their hands 1:45:52.  Councilmember Barbara Tidwell added she would like to 

see funds from North Logan and Mayor Peterson said they are putting money in.  1:46:58  Councilmember Kathryn 

Bues clarified the need for a RFP and asked how many other municipalities have committed financially 1:47:19.   

Mayor Peterson said mayors have given general support.  She explained the need of the facility in the valley and 

need for county support funding to get it 1:47:43. Councilmember Barbara Tidwell asked why the county should be 

in charge of the facility and Mayor Peterson answered asking why the cities would be responsible for a countywide 

need 1:49:38.  Nolan Gunnel agreed however asked for two weeks to talk with his communities before he voted 

1:51:00.  Councilmember Barbara Tidwell wanted to speak with Mayor Daines first and Mayor Peterson answered 

there is strong support from her already 1:52:58.  Council and Mayor Peterson discussed briefly about the Logan 

recreation center splitting within weeks.  1:53:26 Chair Erickson brought question if RAPZ funds are supposed to be 

https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4615
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4615
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4720
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4760
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4781
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4793
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4816
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4930
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4933
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=4989
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5024
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5352
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5388
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5517
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5580
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5707
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5725
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5851
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5851
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=5950
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6010
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6031
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6075
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6171
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6277
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6277
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6277
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6328
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6352
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6418
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6439
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6463
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6578
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6660
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6778
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6806


used for feasibility studies and would like to put effort to projects ready to go.  He raised concerns how money is 

spent 1:54:24.  Councilmember Kathryn Bues mentioned Alma audits those 1:56:07.  Chair Erickson continued  the 

code does not say RAPZ funding is to be used for feasibility studies.  He said those who would not use the facility 

should not have to pay for it and mentioned concern the effect it would have on other recreation businesses 

1:56:18. Councilmember Kathryn Bues voiced the residents need this service 2:01:14.  Karl Ward agreed using RAPZ 

funds is not a correct use for a feasibility study and should instead support the projects ready to go 2:02:29.  

Councilmember Karl Ward asked for code reference and Micah Saftsen read it aloud 2:04:48.  Chair Erickson said to 

make revisions and share at next council meeting 2:05:26.  Councilmember Kathryn Bues seconded to come with 

questions for how funds were allocated 2:07:27.    

 

12. Other Business 

a. Richmond Black & White Days Parade May 18, 2024 at 5:00 pm  

Discussion:  Chair Erickson asked who would attend 2:08:38.  

b. Upcoming Policy for Three Digit Line-item Codes and Intradepartmental Transfers 

Discussion:  Micah Safsten spoke to an ordinance the Policy Review Committee has been discussing and explained the 

line item set up with definitions 2:10:03.  Councilmember Nolan Gunnell asked why the change from 1 thousand to 5 

thousand and if transfers will be seen 2:19:09. Micah answered in policy any transfers must be reported 2:19:49 

Councilmember Barbara Tidwell said rules for transfers interdepartmentally has caused requests for more money at 

budget 2:22:23.  Micah said the intent in 2022 was for Council to have oversight and departments are asking for more 

2:23:09.  Councilmember Nolan Gunnel gave his concern 2:23:09.  Barbara said she would like a report from each 

department for transfers 2:23:41.  Councilmember Mark Hurd confirmed what triggers a budget opening 2:24:16. Chair 

Erickson said the key is not the amount it’s that there has not been an auditor to say no.  He asked if there was a report 

to divide further 2:25:15.  Micah responded different expenses are broken down but there is no code 2:28:34.  

Councilmember Nolan Gunnell asked about money put into miscellaneous 2:29:19.  Micah suggested not putting 

miscellaneous into any of the categories and council discussed 2:29:50.  Sandi Goodlander asked for an expansion to 

make them more specific 2:30:25.  Councilmember Mark Hurd said parts can be addressed by the credit card policy 

2:32:01.  Micah answered there may be technological limitations 2:32:50.  Council discussed 2:35:33.  Councilmember 

Sandi Goodlander asked if it is possible show the offset expenses from revenues together echoed by Mark Hurd 2:36:43.  

Micah answered departments with revenues are shown but not lined up with expense code 2:38:01.  Council discussed 

2:38:54.  Councilmember Kathryn Bues asked what role exactly the auditor will perform and council answered 2:40:15. 

 

 

 

     

B. Councilmember Reports 2:41:34 

 

Mark Hurd –Spoke to his meeting with the Fair Board and talked about ARPA funding and line items for RAPZ. While taking a 
tour of site noted the infrastructure is aging.  Even with the animal boarding fee increase the stalls are full. He called on 
Bryson Behm for an office update 2:41:43.  Bryson Behm provided an update to council on elections and staffing. 2:44:15  
Councilmember Sandi Goodlander asked about fairgrounds alcohol policy and impact surcharge fees 2:46:16.  
Councilmember Mark Hurd answered Bart felt it was a good idea 2:47:47. 
Nolan Gunnell – Spoke to open space and planning and zoning and encouraged council to please read the master plan 
2:48:09. 
Kathryn Beus – Said in compensation committee meeting broker recommended self-funding for insurance with select health.  
The Fire Board executive committee is changing 2:50:10. 
Barbara Tidwell – No update for UAC and thanked those who submitted to Micah for the Open Meetings Act 2:52:16. 
David Erickson – None 
Sandi Goodlander – None 
Karl Ward – None 
  

https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6864
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6967
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=6978
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7274
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7349
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7488
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7526
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7647
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7718
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=7803
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8349
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8389
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8543
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8589
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8609
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8621
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8656
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8715
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8914
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8959
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=8990
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9025
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9025
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9121
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9170
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9213
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9403
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9481
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9534
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9615
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9694
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9703
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9855
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=9976
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=10067
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=10089
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=10210
https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=10336


 

 

Adjourn: 7:30 PM 2:53:20

 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

APPROVAL:  David Erickson, Chair 

Cache County Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

ATTEST:  Bryson Behm, Clerk 

Cache County Council  

 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/live/OmYJbeDCE0s?feature=shared&t=10400














































 
CACHE COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 11 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE WAIVING OF ENCROACHMENT FEES FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF BROADBAND IN UNDERSERVED AREAS OF CACHE 

COUNTY 

 

(A) WHEREAS; the County Council may pass all ordinances and rules and make all 

regulations, not repugnant to law, necessary for carrying into effect or discharging its 

powers and duties pursuant to Utah Code §17-53-223(1); and 

 

(B) WHEREAS, Cache County Code §12.02.020 authorizes the County to collect an 

encroachment fee from any entity working within a county right-of-way; and 

 

(C) WHEREAS, this fee may be waived, under such circumstances that the County Executive 

or Director of Public Works deem necessary; and 

 

(D) WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Cache County Council that broadband internet access be 

brought to those areas of the county that do not yet have this vital service; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the County Legislative Body of Cache County ordains as follows: 

 

The Cache County Council requests that the Public Works Director waive encroachment 

fees for any internet service provider wishing to install broadband internet services to 

underserved areas of the county. The Public Works Director may use his best judgement to 

determine what areas of the county might be considered underserved, though these areas should 

reasonably be understood as parts of the county where the installation of broadband might be 

difficult and otherwise expensive. 

 

Furthermore, the Cache County Council expresses its interest in establishing franchise 

agreements with these service providers, so as to better ensure that all citizens of the county 

might have reliable and affordable access to the internet, regardless of where they live in the 

county. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF CACHE COUNTY, UTAH 

THIS ___ DAY OF ___________________ 2024. 

  
In Favor Against Abstained Absent 

David Erickson 
    

Sandi Goodlander 
    

Nolan Gunnell     

Barbara Tidwell 
    

Karl Ward 
    

Mark Hurd 
    



 
CACHE COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 11 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Kathryn Beus 
    

        Total 
    

 

CACHE COUNTY:    ATTEST: 

 

By:      By:      

David L. Erickson, Chair   Bryson Behm, County Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 










































































